
City of Riverton 
Regular Council Meeting 

Tuesday, June 07, 2022 at 7:00 pm 
Riverton City Hall Council Chambers

816 N Federal Blvd. 
Riverton, WY 82501 

      “Excellence in Service to the Rendezvous City” 

At 6:45 P.M. on Tuesday, June 07, 2022, the Finance Committee will meet in the City Hall 
Council Chambers to consider bills to be paid. This meeting is open to the public. 

1) Call to order.

2) Pledge of Allegiance.

3) Invocation.

4) Roll call: Ward I: Kyle Larson, Dean Peranteaux
Ward II: Karla Borders, Kristy K. Salisbury 
Ward III: Mike Bailey, Lindsey Cox  

5) Declaration of quorum.

6) Approval of the Agenda.

7) Communication from the Floor – Citizen’s Comments.

8) Consent Agenda:
• Approval of the Minutes – May 17, 2022 Regular Council Meeting.
• Approval of the Minutes – May 17, 2022 Executive Session.
• Approval of the Minutes – May 24, 2022 Council Work Session.
• Approval of the Minutes – June 7, 2022 Finance Committee Meeting.
• Approval of the Finance Committee Recommendations – June 7, 2022.
• Replat: Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision Lot 2; Petitioner Jeffrey Menzies.

9) Public Hearing & Consideration of Firework Permit Applications: Riverton Rendezvous & Riverton 
Little League.

10) Public Hearing & Consideration of Ordinance No. 22-005, 1st Reading: RMC Title 17 Zoning Definition.

11) Public Hearing & Consideration of Ordinance No. 22-006, 1st Reading: R4 Residential Zoning Revision.

12) Consideration of Airport Ground Leases: Transferring from M&J Leisure LLC. to Henderson Strategic 
Fund, LLC.

Reports and Comments: 
13) Council Committee Reports and Council Members’ Roundtable.
14) City Administrator’s Report.
15) Mayor’s Comments.
16) Executive Session – Real Estate & Personnel.
17) Adjourn.



Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 2 May 17, 2022 

RIVERTON CITY COUNCIL 
Minutes of the 

Regular Council Meeting 
Held May 17, 2022 

7:00 PM 

The regular meeting of the Riverton City Council was held on the above date and time, duly convened by Mayor 
Richard P. Gard at 7:00 p.m.  City Council Members present were Karla Borders, Dean Peranteaux, Kyle Larson 
(telephonically), and Kristy K. Salisbury. Council Member Salisbury led the pledge of allegiance; and Mayor 
Richard Gard conducted the invocation. 

Roll call was conducted. Council Member Borders moved, seconded by Council Member Peranteaux to excuse 
Council Members Lindsey Cox and Mike Bailey from tonight’s meeting.  Motion passed unanimously.  Mayor 
Gard declared a quorum of the Council.  

City Staff present were: City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin S. Watson, City Administrator Tony 
Tolstedt, Public Works Director Kyle Butterfield, Police Chief Eric Murphy, Finance Director Mia Harris, 
Community Development Director Mike Miller, and Administrative Assistant Tisha Tuttle.  

Approval of the Agenda – Council Member Peranteaux moved, seconded by Council Member Borders to 
approve the agenda, with the addition of an open container permit to the consent agenda.  Motion passed 
unanimously.  

Communication from the Floor/Response to Citizen’s Comments – High School Senior Jamie Reinig 
addressed the Council regarding her desire to make hygiene items more accessible to the transient population. 
The Council offered many suggestions on options for this project and invited Jamie to speak to City staff for any 
further assistance. Alan Sinner co-chairman of the Northern Arapahoe Indian Tour Rodeo addressed the council 
regarding the scheduled rodeo June 17 – 19, 2022, and requested approval to fly Northern Arapahoe flags on the 
juncture of Federal and Main Street the week before the rodeo.  There was no objection from the Council. Karin 
Broemer addressed the Council regarding the Riverton Chamber of Commerce Bike Rack Project and shared her 
opinion of the project.  

Consent Agenda – City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin S. Watson read the consent agenda items by 
title only: Approval of the Minutes – May 03, 2022 Regular Council Meeting; Approval of the Minutes – May 
17, 2022 Finance Committee Meeting; Approval of the Finance Committee Recommendations – May 17, 2022, 
claims to be paid in the amount of $589,830.88, Elan credit card in the amount of $4,835.09, manual check in the 
amount of $150.00, payroll & liabilities for 5/6/22 in the amount of $218,063.51, for a total of $812,879.48; 
Approval of the Municipal Court Report for the Month of April 2022; Out of City Water Service Agreement: 270 
Mountain View, Petitioner: Jeff Menzies; Open Container Permit Application: The Social Lounge & Night Club, 
Riverton Gay Pride Weekend Event, June 17, 2022, North 5th Street East (from East Main Street to alley), 2:00 
PM – 2:00 AM; and Open Container Permit Application: The Lions Club, End of Year Celebration, June 06, 
2022, Sunset Park 5:00 PM – 9:00 PM. Council Member Salisbury moved, seconded by Council Member Borders 
to approve the consent agenda as presented. Motion passed unanimously, with Council Member Peranteaux 
abstaining from Wyonet and Traveling Computers claims.   

Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Agreement – Chamber Bike Rack Project – City Administrator 
Tony Tolstedt reported on the proposed MOU with the Riverton Chamber of Commerce.  The MOU is in 
reference to seeking permission for the Riverton Chamber of Commerce to place bike racks around town on City 
property.  Bethany Baldes, Riverton Chamber of Commerce Vice President, stated that the Chamber has proposed 
five bike racks at various locations around town.  Council Member Borders moved, seconded by Council Member 
Peranteaux, to approve the Memorandum of Understanding Agreement (MOU) between the City of Riverton and 
Riverton Chamber of Commerce as presented.  Motion passed unanimously. 

Major Avenue Pavement Improvement Project – Public Works Director Kyle Butterfield reported on the bid 
opening for Major Avenue.  One bid was received from 71 Construction in the amount of $658,690; the engineer’s 
estimate was $402,735. After negotiations, 71 Construction offered to negotiate the cost to $603,208.70.  Council 
Member Peranteaux moved, seconded by Council Member Salisbury to reject the bid received from 71 
Construction for the Major Avenue Improvement Project, and direct staff to rebid the project next construction 
season.  Motion passed unanimously.  

Approval Of City Of Riverton Grant Application Policy – City Administrator Tony Tolstedt presented the 
proposed change to the City of Riverton Grant Application Policy, which would allow greater flexibility in the 
grant application process while maintaining appropriate oversight.  Council Member Salisbury moved, seconded 
by Council Member Borders to approve the grant application policy changes as presented. Motion passed 
unanimously.  

2



Regular Council Meeting Minutes Page 2 of 2 May 17, 2022 

Airport Hangar Lease Agreement: Random Ranch – Public Works Director Kyle Butterfield presented the 
proposed airport hangar lease agreement with Random Ranch, LLC. The proposed lease agreement between the 
City of Riverton and Random Ranch, LLC will generate an annual revenue of $2,376. Council Member Borders 
moved, seconded by Council Member Peranteaux to approve the airport hangar ground lease agreement with 
Random Ranch, LLC at Central Wyoming Regional Airport (RIW).  Motion passed unanimously.  
  
Approval of Wind River Visitors Council FY23 Budget – Helen Wilson, Executive Director of Wind River 
Visitors Council (WRVC), presented the annual WRVC proposed budget and answered questions from the 
previous meeting. Council Member Peranteaux seconded by Council Member Salisbury to remove from the table 
the WRVC budget approval. Motion passed unanimously. Council Member Borders moved, seconded by Council 
Member Peranteaux, to approve the Fiscal Year 2022-2023 Wind River Visitors Council Budget as 
presented.  Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Summer WAM Voting Delegate Form – City Administrator Tony Tolstedt reported on the upcoming Summer 
WAM Conference that will be held in Laramie. Council Member Borders moved, seconded by Council Member 
Salisbury, to approve Mayor Gard as the official voting delegate, and City Administrator Tony Tolstedt as the 
alternative voting delegate for the 2022 Summer WAM Convention. Motion passed unanimously. 
 
Council Committee Reports & Council Members’ Roundtable – Council Member Borders shared the events 
listed on GoRiverton. Council Member Salisbury reported on the Taste of Riverton that will be held on June 24th 
at City Park, and thanked the Riverton Police Department for their continuous efforts.  
 
City Administrator’s Report – City Administrator Tony Tolstedt reported on the following meetigs: RECDA, 
Airport Board, Legislative Leadership Committee, and IDEA Inc.  Mr. Tolstedt also reported that the EDGE 
funding application period is open and application can be found on the City of Riverton website. The upcoming 
budget meeting will be a work session May 24, 2022, and a special meeting on June 14, 2022.  Both meetings 
will take place at 5:30 PM on the respective dates.  
 
Mayor’s Comments – Mayor Gard reported on the following meetings and events: National Day of Prayer; 
Riverton Ambassadors meeting; Cinco de Mayo Proclamation, commenting on the impact that tourism has on our 
community and in the State. Mayor Gard discussed the budget meetings that have taken place and the many facets 
of the process. Mayor Gard mentioned that several High School Students have written him letters regarding areas 
that the City could improve on. The Mayor commented on the meeting with Community Development Director 
Mike Miller and City Administrator Tony Tolstedt on code application surrounding the recent growth and 
building happening in Riverton.  
 
Executive Session – Real Estate – Council Member Peranteaux moved, seconded by Council Member Borders 
to convene into Executive Session for the purpose of Real Estate. Motion passed unanimously at 8:19 p.m.  Invited 
to attend the executive session were City Administrator Tony Tolstedt, City Clerk/Human Resource Director 
Kristin Watson, and Public Works Director Kyle Butterfield.  Council Member Peranteaux moved, seconded by 
Council Member Borders to reconvene into regular Session at 9:13 p.m. Motion passed unanimously. ACTION 
ITEMS FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION: Council Member Peranteaux moved, seconded by Council Member 
Borders to proceed with the sale of both parcels of ground with the ability to negotiate survey costs. Motion 
passed unanimously. 
 
Adjourn – There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Gard adjourned the Regular 
Council Meeting at 9:15 p.m.  There was no objection from the Council. 
  
CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING  
 
                
          Richard P. Gard 

Mayor 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 
 
Publication Date:  

3



Work Session Minutes Page 1 of 1 May 24, 2022 

RIVERTON CITY COUNCIL 
Minutes of the 

Work Session Meeting 
Held May 24, 2022 

5:30 PM 
 

The work session meeting of the Riverton City Council was held on the above date and time, duly convened by Mayor 
Richard P. Gard at 5:38 p.m.  City Council Members present were Karla Borders, Kyle Larson, and Kristy K. Salisbury. 
Council Member Larson led the pledge of allegiance and Mayor Gard conducted the invocation. 
 
City Staff present: City Administrator Tony Tolstedt, City Clerk/Human Resource Director Kristin Watson, Public 
Works Director Kyle Butterfield, Police Chief Eric Murphy, Finance Director Mia Harris, Community Development 
Director Michael Miller, and Administrative Assistant Tisha Tuttle. 
 
Approval of the Agenda – Council Member Larson moved, seconded by Council Member Salisbury to approve the 
agenda as presented.  Motion passed unanimously.  
 
Fiscal Year 2023 Budget Presentation & Discussion – City Administrator Tony Tolstedt presented a proposed 
budget that represents a balanced approach for operating the City of Riverton for fiscal year 2022 – 2023. Mr. Tolstedt 
offered a brief overview regarding the expenditures and revenues for the general fund and enterprise funds which 
include the water, wastewater (sewer), sanitation and airport funds. In conclusion, Mr. Tolstedt thanked the city staff 
for their diligence in achieving a balanced budget. No action from the Council was taken. 
 
Adjourn – There being no further business to come before the Council, Mayor Gard adjourned the Work Session 
meeting at 6:52 p.m. There was no objection from the Council. 
 
CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING  
                
          Richard P. Gard 

Mayor 
 
 
 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
________________________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 
 
Published:  

4



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
 
TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 
 
FROM: Michael Miller – Director of Community Development   
 
THROUGH: Anthony Tolstedt – City Administrator  
 
DATE: June 7th, 2022 

SUBJECT: County Replat – Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision Lot 2 

PETITIONER: Jeffrey Menzies 
 
Recommendation:  City Council approve the replat of Mountain View Acres Fourth 
Subdivision Lot 2 
 
Background: This lot is not within the City Limits of Riverton but is within a half mile of the 
incorporated limits. As a courtesy, the County allows any plats and replats within a half mile of 
City limits be reviewed by both the Riverton Planning Commission and Riverton City Council.  
 
Discussion: Lot 2 of the Mountain View Acres Subdivision is being divided into two lots, 2A 
and 2B. The County has sent their own utility reviews out but there have been no negative 
responses to date. No issues are anticipated due to easements that previously existed and have 
been allotted for each lot. The petitioner, Jeffrey Menzies, has requested City services for water 
which are already existing in that area. The petitioner has already signed a water agreement with 
the city, which was approved by City Council on May 17th, 2022. There is currently a recapture 
agreement for sewer services in the area of the lots.   
 
This replat was certified by the Planning Commission on May 19th, 2022 and is scheduled to be 
brought before the County Planning Commission on June 23rd, 2022 
 
Alternatives: 

1. Approve the county replat 
2. Deny the replat 
3. Certify the replat with changes and amendments 

 
Budget Impact:  Approving this replat does not directly impact the current budget 
 

5



6

AutoCAD SHX Text
MOUNTAIN VIEW ACRES, FOURTH SUBDIVISION, LOT 2 RE-SUBDIVISION

AutoCAD SHX Text
May 3, 2022

AutoCAD SHX Text
see Doc# 2022-1437040

AutoCAD SHX Text
Mountain View Acres, 4th

AutoCAD SHX Text
2

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.314

AutoCAD SHX Text
Two

AutoCAD SHX Text
2.314

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
1.15

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
0.0

AutoCAD SHX Text
Jeffrey Menzies

AutoCAD SHX Text
270 Mtn. View Dr, Riverton, WY 82501

AutoCAD SHX Text
cell: 307-851-5880



7

AutoCAD SHX Text
Jeffrey Menzies

AutoCAD SHX Text
Hamilton Land Surveying, Inc.

AutoCAD SHX Text
P.O. Box 112, Lander, WY 82520

AutoCAD SHX Text
hamilton@wyoming.com

AutoCAD SHX Text
office: 307-332-2903

AutoCAD SHX Text
Dave Fehringer

AutoCAD SHX Text
Fremont Engineering & Surveying, Inc

AutoCAD SHX Text
cell: 307-349-0840

AutoCAD SHX Text
64 Coal mine Rd, Lander, WY 82520

AutoCAD SHX Text
Chris D. Hamilton, AGENT



F-23740

WARRANTY DEED

FOR VALUE Received DEETTA HEMMING and SHAWN D. HEMMING,

Trustees,or theirsuccessorsintrust,under the Mary EttaBeck Revocable Trust,dated March

24, 1999, Grantor,forand inconsiderationof Ten Dollars($10.00)and othergood and valuable

consideration,does hereby grant,bargain,sell,convey, warrantand confirm unto BARB

MENZIES and JEFF MENZIES, wife and husband, Grantees,whose addressis

90 EO% 2032tÑNtYW; NQ $260I ,and

totheheirsand assignsof saidGrantees,the followingdescribedpremises,inFremont County,

Wyoming, to-wit:

Lot 2,Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision,Fremont County Wyoming.

TOGETHER WITH allbuildingsand improvements locatedthereonor appurtenant
theretoand allrights,privileges,hereditamentsand tenements appertainingor belonging thereto.

Grantor covenants and agree with thesaidGrantees thatsaidTrust isthe lawfulowner of said

premises,with the rightand power toconvey the same, atthetime of making and delivery

hereof,the premises areunencumbered except as noted of record. The Grantor warrantsthe

quietand peaceable possessionthereofand willdefend thetitletothe premises or any interest

thereto.

Dated: February 2022.

Mary EttaBeck Revocable Trust,dated March 24, 1999

DEETTA HEMMING, Trustee
'

SHAWN D. HEMMING ee

STATE OF WYOMING )

)ss.

COUNTY OF FREMONT )

On this 9 day of February,2022, beforeme, a notarypublicinand forsaidState,

personallyappeared DEETTA HEMMING and SHAWN D. HEMMING, Trustees,or their

successorsintrust,under the Mary EttaBeck Revocable Trust,dated March 24, 1999, known to

me tobe theperson whose name issubscribedtothe withininstrument,and acknowledged to me

thatshe executed thesame.

IN WITNESS THEREOF, Ihave hereuntosetmy hand and affixedmy NotarialSealtheday and

yearinthiscertificatefirstabove written.

ReturntoGrantees / (/ 6

Notary Public

Commission expires: /

8



9



10



11



12



13

kbutterfield
Callout
6" City Water Line

kbutterfield
Callout
6" City Water Line

kbutterfield
Callout
Private Mnt View District Water Line

kbutterfield
Callout
Private Mnt View District Water Line

kbutterfield
Rectangle

kbutterfield
Line

kbutterfield
Callout
6" City Water Line

kbutterfield
Line

kbutterfield
Line

kbutterfield
Typewritten Text
?

kbutterfield
Typewritten Text
?



14



UTILITY  LEGEND:

M
TN

 V
IE

W
 D

R
.

RIVER VIEW ROAD

MOUNTAIN VIEW ACRES

This plat of  Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Lot 2  Re-Subdivision is
approved by the City of Riverton Planning Commission  this _______ day of
_________________, 2022.

CHAIRMAN

s.s.

LOT 2A

S89°25'00"E

MAYOR WITNESS; CITY CLERK

This plat of  Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Lot 2  Re-Subdivision
approved by the City of Riverton Council this _______ day of _________________,
2022.

This subdivision plat of Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Lot 2  Re-Subdivision, Fremont
County, Wyoming, is hereby approved by the Board of County Commissioners of Fremont
County, Wyoming for filing with the Clerk and Recorder of Fremont County and for conveyance
to the county of the public dedications shown hereon; subject to the provision that approval in no
way obligates Fremont County for financing or construction of improvements on lands, streets, or
easements dedicated to the public except as specifically agreed to by the Board of County
Commissioners.

Dated this ________ day of _______________, 2022.
                                                                                       ________________________________
                                                                                                              Chairman

Witness my hand and seal of the County of Fremont this _______ day of _________________,
2021.

______________________
Clerk & Recorder

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' CERTIFICATE

This subdivision plat of Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Lot 2  Re-Subdivision, Fremont
County, Wyoming was approved by the Fremont County Planning Commission this ________
day of ___________, 2022.

_________________________________
        Planning Commission Member

LOT 2B

10' Utility & Drainage
Easement, from lot
line

10' Utility & Drainage
Easement, each

side of lot line

15' Utility & Drainage
Easement, from lot

line

added 20'x20' utility
easement on each
side of lot line

10' Utility & Drainage
Easement, each

side of lot line

15' Utility & Drainage
Easement, from lot

line

7.5' Utility &
Drainage Easement,
each side of lot line

693.00'

LOCATION   MAP:

1. THE PURPOSE OF THIS PLAT IS TO CREATE TWO LOTS FROM LOT 2 OF MOUNTAIN VIEW
ACRES FOURTH SUBDIVISION.

2. PUBLIC SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM IS AVAILABLE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THIS
SUBDIVISION.

3. WATER SYSTEM OR SOURCE FROM WELL AS SHOWN HEREON AND DETAILED IN WELL
AGREEMENT MADE A PART HEREOF. 

4. WEST MOUNTAIN VIEW DRIVE IS A 50 FOOT WIDE PUBLIC ROAD WITH PUBLIC MAINTENANCE.

5. ALL UTILITY RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE FOR THE BENEFIT
OF ALL PROPERTY OWNERS LOCATED WITHIN THIS PLAT AND ALL PROPERTY OWNERS
WHO REQUIRE SERVICES BEYOND THIS SUBDIVISION.

6. A SEARCH OF RECORDS ON FILE WITH WYOMING STATE ENGINEER'S OFFICE FOR LANDS
WITHIN THE FOREGOING LOT 2 OF MOUNTAIN VIEW ACRES FOURTH SUBDIVISION  INDICATE
NO SURFACE WATER IRRIGATION RIGHTS.

7. STATE LAW DOES NOT RECOGNIZE ANY RIPARIAN WATER RIGHT. YOU SHALL HAVE NO
RIGHT TO IRRIGATION WATER FLOWING PAST OR THROUGH THIS SUBDIVISION OTHER THAN
THAT WHICH IS SPECIFICALLY ADJUDICATED OR APPROPRIATED TO YOUR LOT VIA THE
STATE ENGINEER'S OFFICE OR THE STATE BOARD OF CONTROL.

8. NO LOT OWNER SHALL IMPEDE, OBSTRUCT, DIVERT, OR IN ANY WAY POLLUTE ANY
IRRIGATION DITCH ON LAND WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION.

9. THE LOTS WITHIN THIS RE-SUBDIVISION ARE SUBJECT TO THE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS AS CONTAINED IN THE DECLARATION OF PROTECTIVE COVENANTS,
DATED DECEMBER 10, 1976, RECORDED IN M.F. BOOK 43, PAGE 1.

10. THE BEARINGS ON THIS PLAT ARE BASED UPON RECORD PLAT FOR MOUNTAIN VIEW ACRES
SUBDIVISION's. THE DISTANCES ARE BASED ON GPS MEASUREMENTS USING A GROUND
SCALE FACTOR OF 1.0003134651 REFERENCED FROM A POINT NEAR THE PROJECT WITH A
LATITUDE OF N43°15'04.38048" AND LONGITUDE OF W108°35'54.81748" AND A HEIGHT OF
5289.00 ft.

NOTES:

This subdivision plat of Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Lot 2  Re-Subdivision, Fremont
County, WY was filed in the office of Clerk and Recorder of Fremont County this ________ day of
______________, 2022, at ______o'clock ___M.,  and is duly recorded in Plat Cabinet _________,
page __________,

Document No. ____________________.

_____________________          ________________________
    Clerk & Recorder                                    Deputy Clerk

CLERK & RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE

I, CHRIS D. HAMILTON,  do hereby state that I am a registered Land Surveyor
licensed under the laws of the State of Wyoming, that this plat is a true, correct
and complete subdivision plat of Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Lot 2
Re-Subdivision, County of Fremont, State of Wyoming, containing 100,782
square feet, or 2.314 acres, more or less, more or less, as laid out, platted,
dedicated and shown hereon; based upon a title report from Stewart Title
Guaranty Company, File No. F-23740; this plat  was made from an accurate
survey of this property, made by me and/or under my supervision and correctly
shows the location and dimensions of the lot and streets of said subdivision as
the same are staked upon the ground in compliance with Fremont County
regulations governing the subdivision of land.

In witness whereof I have set my
hand & seal this ______ day
of ____________, 2022.

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEYOR

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION
Know all men by these presents that: the owner(s), Barb Menzies and Jeff Menzies, having interest in all real
property described in a Warranty Deed recorded on February 8, 2022, in Document 2022-1437040. The
boundary of this subdivision defined as Lot 2, Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Fremont County,
Wyoming,

Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision was recorded on June 3, 2002, in Plat Cabinet 5, Page 173 as Document
2002-1230901.

As appears on this plat is with the free consent, and in accordance with the desires of the undersigned owner(s)
and proprietor(s); containing 2.314 acres, more or less, of which 0.00 acres are dedicated as public streets and
2.314 acres are in lots; have by these presents laid out, and surveyed as Mountain View Acres Fourth
Subdivision, Lot 2  Re-Subdivision, in the County of Fremont, State of Wyoming; and do hereby dedicate and
convey to and for the public use forever hereafter the roads as are laid out and designated on this plat, and do
also reserve perpetual public easements for the installation and maintenance of utilities and for irrigation
and drainage facilities,as are laid out and designed on this plat. The dedication of the road or roads on this plat
in no way obligates the Fremont County Commissioners to maintain such roads or accept them as county roads
nor is the Subdivider relieved of the obligation to construct such road or roads according to the requirements of
the Fremont County Subdivision Regulations.

All rights under and by virtue of the homestead exemption laws of the State of Wyoming are hereby waived and
released.

EXECUTED this _______ day of _________________, 2022.

            ________________________                ______________________________
                        Barb Menzies                                         Jeff Menzies

STATE OF WYOMING    )
COUNTY OF FREMONT)
The forgoing dedication was acknowledged before me this______ day of ______________, 2022 by:
Barb Menzies and Jeff Menzies .
Witness my hand and official seal:
My commission expires:_____________                                     ________________________

                                                                                               Notary Public

10' Utility & Drainage
Easement, each

side of lot line

Ex
is

tin
g 

G
as

 L
in

e

Existing HPP
Buried Electric

Line

Lo
t L

in
e

Proposed Buried Elect. Line

PROPOSED WATER
SERVICES & FIRE HYDRANT

Lo
t L

in
e

15

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
= ELECTRIC POWER PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
= ELECTRIC (approx.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
= WATER LINE (approx.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
= TELEPHONE (approx.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
= GAS (approx.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
WV

AutoCAD SHX Text
PM

AutoCAD SHX Text
= WATER VALVE

AutoCAD SHX Text
= TELEPHONE PEDESTAL

AutoCAD SHX Text
= SEWER LINE (approx.)

AutoCAD SHX Text
= SEWER MANHOLE

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
Y

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
= WATER HYDRANT

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text
122104

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
of 1 Sheets

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 46

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 45

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 33

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 34

AutoCAD SHX Text
S36

AutoCAD SHX Text
S25

AutoCAD SHX Text
S31

AutoCAD SHX Text
S30

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 42

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 35

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 36

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 800'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5297

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
r

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
l

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
u

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
Riverton



MOUNTAIN VIEW ACRES

This plat of  Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Lot 2  Re-Subdivision is
approved by the City of Riverton Planning Commission  this _______ day of
_________________, 2022.

CHAIRMAN

s.s.

LOT 2A

S89°25'00"E

MAYOR WITNESS; CITY CLERK

This plat of  Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Lot 2  Re-Subdivision
approved by the City of Riverton Council this _______ day of _________________,
2022.

This subdivision plat of Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Lot 2  Re-Subdivision, Fremont
County, Wyoming, is hereby approved by the Board of County Commissioners of Fremont
County, Wyoming for filing with the Clerk and Recorder of Fremont County and for conveyance
to the county of the public dedications shown hereon; subject to the provision that approval in no
way obligates Fremont County for financing or construction of improvements on lands, streets, or
easements dedicated to the public except as specifically agreed to by the Board of County
Commissioners.

Dated this ________ day of _______________, 2022.
                                                                                       ________________________________
                                                                                                              Chairman

Witness my hand and seal of the County of Fremont this _______ day of _________________,
2021.

______________________
Clerk & Recorder

COUNTY COMMISSIONERS' CERTIFICATE

This subdivision plat of Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Lot 2  Re-Subdivision, Fremont
County, Wyoming was approved by the Fremont County Planning Commission this ________
day of ___________, 2022.

_________________________________
        Planning Commission Member

LOT 2B

10' Utility & Drainage
Easement, from lot
line

10' Utility & Drainage
Easement, each

side of lot line

15' Utility & Drainage
Easement, from lot

line

added 20'x20' utility
easement on each
side of lot line

10' Utility & Drainage
Easement, each

side of lot line

15' Utility & Drainage
Easement, from lot

line

7.5' Utility &
Drainage Easement,
each side of lot line

693.00'

LOCATION   MAP:

1. THE PURPOSE OF THIS PLAT IS TO CREATE TWO LOTS FROM LOT 2 OF MOUNTAIN VIEW
ACRES FOURTH SUBDIVISION.

2. PUBLIC SEWAGE DISPOSAL SYSTEM IS AVAILABLE ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THIS
SUBDIVISION.

3. WATER SYSTEM OR SOURCE FROM WELL AS SHOWN HEREON AND DETAILED IN WELL
AGREEMENT MADE A PART HEREOF. 

4. WEST MOUNTAIN VIEW DRIVE IS A 50 FOOT WIDE PUBLIC ROAD WITH PUBLIC MAINTENANCE.

5. ALL UTILITY RIGHTS-OF-WAY AND EASEMENTS SHOWN ON THIS PLAT ARE FOR THE BENEFIT
OF ALL PROPERTY OWNERS LOCATED WITHIN THIS PLAT AND ALL PROPERTY OWNERS
WHO REQUIRE SERVICES BEYOND THIS SUBDIVISION.

6. A SEARCH OF RECORDS ON FILE WITH WYOMING STATE ENGINEER'S OFFICE FOR LANDS
WITHIN THE FOREGOING LOT 2 OF MOUNTAIN VIEW ACRES FOURTH SUBDIVISION  INDICATE
NO SURFACE WATER IRRIGATION RIGHTS.

7. STATE LAW DOES NOT RECOGNIZE ANY RIPARIAN WATER RIGHT. YOU SHALL HAVE NO
RIGHT TO IRRIGATION WATER FLOWING PAST OR THROUGH THIS SUBDIVISION OTHER THAN
THAT WHICH IS SPECIFICALLY ADJUDICATED OR APPROPRIATED TO YOUR LOT VIA THE
STATE ENGINEER'S OFFICE OR THE STATE BOARD OF CONTROL.

8. NO LOT OWNER SHALL IMPEDE, OBSTRUCT, DIVERT, OR IN ANY WAY POLLUTE ANY
IRRIGATION DITCH ON LAND WITHIN THIS SUBDIVISION.

9. THE LOTS WITHIN THIS RE-SUBDIVISION ARE SUBJECT TO THE COVENANTS, CONDITIONS
AND RESTRICTIONS AS CONTAINED IN THE DECLARATION OF PROTECTIVE COVENANTS,
DATED DECEMBER 10, 1976, RECORDED IN M.F. BOOK 43, PAGE 1.

10. THE BEARINGS ON THIS PLAT ARE BASED UPON RECORD PLAT FOR MOUNTAIN VIEW ACRES
SUBDIVISION's. THE DISTANCES ARE BASED ON GPS MEASUREMENTS USING A GROUND
SCALE FACTOR OF 1.0003134651 REFERENCED FROM A POINT NEAR THE PROJECT WITH A
LATITUDE OF N43°15'04.38048" AND LONGITUDE OF W108°35'54.81748" AND A HEIGHT OF
5289.00 ft.

NOTES:

This subdivision plat of Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Lot 2  Re-Subdivision, Fremont
County, WY was filed in the office of Clerk and Recorder of Fremont County this ________ day of
______________, 2022, at ______o'clock ___M.,  and is duly recorded in Plat Cabinet _________,
page __________,

Document No. ____________________.

_____________________          ________________________
    Clerk & Recorder                                    Deputy Clerk

CLERK & RECORDER'S CERTIFICATE

I, CHRIS D. HAMILTON,  do hereby state that I am a registered Land Surveyor
licensed under the laws of the State of Wyoming, that this plat is a true, correct
and complete subdivision plat of Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Lot 2
Re-Subdivision, County of Fremont, State of Wyoming, containing 100,782
square feet, or 2.314 acres, more or less, more or less, as laid out, platted,
dedicated and shown hereon; based upon a title report from Stewart Title
Guaranty Company, File No. F-23740; this plat  was made from an accurate
survey of this property, made by me and/or under my supervision and correctly
shows the location and dimensions of the lot and streets of said subdivision as
the same are staked upon the ground in compliance with Fremont County
regulations governing the subdivision of land.

In witness whereof I have set my
hand & seal this ______ day
of ____________, 2022.

CERTIFICATE OF SURVEYOR

CERTIFICATE OF OWNERSHIP AND DEDICATION
Know all men by these presents that: the owner(s), Barb Menzies and Jeff Menzies, having interest in all real
property described in a Warranty Deed recorded on February 8, 2022, in Document 2022-1437040. The
boundary of this subdivision defined as Lot 2, Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision, Fremont County,
Wyoming,

Mountain View Acres Fourth Subdivision was recorded on June 3, 2002, in Plat Cabinet 5, Page 173 as Document
2002-1230901.

As appears on this plat is with the free consent, and in accordance with the desires of the undersigned owner(s)
and proprietor(s); containing 2.314 acres, more or less, of which 0.00 acres are dedicated as public streets and
2.314 acres are in lots; have by these presents laid out, and surveyed as Mountain View Acres Fourth
Subdivision, Lot 2  Re-Subdivision, in the County of Fremont, State of Wyoming; and do hereby dedicate and
convey to and for the public use forever hereafter the roads as are laid out and designated on this plat, and do
also reserve perpetual public easements for the installation and maintenance of utilities and for irrigation
and drainage facilities,as are laid out and designed on this plat. The dedication of the road or roads on this plat
in no way obligates the Fremont County Commissioners to maintain such roads or accept them as county roads
nor is the Subdivider relieved of the obligation to construct such road or roads according to the requirements of
the Fremont County Subdivision Regulations.

All rights under and by virtue of the homestead exemption laws of the State of Wyoming are hereby waived and
released.

EXECUTED this _______ day of _________________, 2022.

            ________________________                ______________________________
                        Barb Menzies                                         Jeff Menzies

STATE OF WYOMING    )
COUNTY OF FREMONT)
The forgoing dedication was acknowledged before me this______ day of ______________, 2022 by:
Barb Menzies and Jeff Menzies .
Witness my hand and official seal:
My commission expires:_____________                                     ________________________

                                                                                               Notary Public

M
TN

 V
IE

W
 D

R
.

RIVER VIEW ROAD10' Utility & Drainage
Easement, each

side of lot line

16

AutoCAD SHX Text
122104

AutoCAD SHX Text
PROJECT:

AutoCAD SHX Text
1 inch =     ft.

AutoCAD SHX Text
( IN FEET )

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRAPHIC SCALE

AutoCAD SHX Text
0

AutoCAD SHX Text
of 1 Sheets

AutoCAD SHX Text
Sheet 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
GRID

AutoCAD SHX Text
30

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
120

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
60

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 1

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 46

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 45

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 44

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 33

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 34

AutoCAD SHX Text
S36

AutoCAD SHX Text
S25

AutoCAD SHX Text
S31

AutoCAD SHX Text
S30

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 43

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 42

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 35

AutoCAD SHX Text
LOT 36

AutoCAD SHX Text
SCALE: 1" = 800'

AutoCAD SHX Text
5297

AutoCAD SHX Text
P

AutoCAD SHX Text
r

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
f

AutoCAD SHX Text
e

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
s

AutoCAD SHX Text
i

AutoCAD SHX Text
o

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
l

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
a

AutoCAD SHX Text
n

AutoCAD SHX Text
d

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
u

AutoCAD SHX Text
C

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
R

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
S

AutoCAD SHX Text
D

AutoCAD SHX Text
.

AutoCAD SHX Text
H

AutoCAD SHX Text
A

AutoCAD SHX Text
M

AutoCAD SHX Text
I

AutoCAD SHX Text
L

AutoCAD SHX Text
T

AutoCAD SHX Text
O

AutoCAD SHX Text
N

AutoCAD SHX Text
No. 2

AutoCAD SHX Text
Canal

AutoCAD SHX Text
Riverton



TIME OF EVENT:

FROM AM/PM TO AM/PM

YES         NO IF YES, PLEASE COMPLETE SECTION 1. YES         NO IF YES, PLEASE COMPLETE SECTION 3.

YES         NO IF YES, PLEASE COMPLETE SECTION 2. YES         NO IF YES, PLEASE COMPLETE SECTION 4.

SECTION 1: PUBLIC AREA USE PERMITS

$30.00

$50.00

SECTION 2: ALCOHOL PERMITS

$25.00

$50.00

$50.00

$50.00

SECTION 3: LOUDSPEAKER PERMIT

$25.00

SECTION 4: FIREWORKS PERMIT

$25.00

TOTAL PAYMENT:

*REQUIRES COUNCIL APPROVAL

EVENT INFORMATION

NAME OF APPLICANT/RESPONSIBLE PARTY: ADDRESS, CITY, STATE, ZIP:

ORGANIZATION (IF APPLICABLE):

For alcohol related permits, the applicant accepts all responsibility for ensuring that no on under 21 years of age will be allowed access to any 

alcoholic beverages during the function and assumes responsibility for civil and criminal liability in the event a person under the age of 21 

consumes or possesses alcohol at the function.

WILL THE EVENT HAVE ALCOHOL PRESENT?

WILL THE EVENT HAVE A LOUDSPEAKER?

CONTACT PHONE NUMBER: CONTACT EMAIL ADDRESS:

NAME & PURPOSE OF EVENT:

LOCATION OF EVENT:

DATE(S) OF EVENT:  

OPEN CONTAINER*

CATERING

MALT BEVERAGE

CITY OF RIVERTON
EVENT APPLICATION

EVENT INFORMATION

USE OF PUBLIC SPACE

All applicable fees must be paid at time of submittal and are non-refundable.  Please provide two (2) business days for staff approved 

items and up to three (3) weeks for council approved items (street closures, open container permits, & fireworks permits).  Please contact 

the City Clerk's office at (307) 856-2227 with any questions.

Upon signing any portion of this application, the applicant agrees to follow all rules and regulations set forth by the Riverton City Council and 

any current orders or directives issued by the Governor. 

&

LOUDSPEAKER

FIREWORKS*

WILL THE EVENT OCCUPY A PUBLIC AREA? (park, street, etc.)

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

WILL THE EVENT HAVE FIREWORKS?

MANUFACTURER'S OFF-PREMISE

PARK RESERVATION

STREET OR RIGHT-OF-WAY CLOSURE

17



FEE: CODE PROVISION:

$30.00 FOR USE OF PARK SHELTER AREA

$50.00 RMC 10.04 TEMPORARY TRAFFIC MODIFICATION

PARK RESERVATION (SHELTER ONLY):

     This only reserves the shelter area and does not guarantee cleanliness of facilites or use of restrooms - please plan accordingly.

     Alcohol is not permitted without proper permit (see Section 2, if alcohol will be requested).

     Bounce houses, tents, stakes, etc. must be approved by parks staff.

     The location shall be left clean and free of debris.

Signature of Applicant

DATE PAID: AMOUNT PAID:             SIGN             WEBSITE

APPROVED / DENIED ON:

City Clerk Signature

OTHER CONDITIONS SET FORTH BY PARKS SUPERVISOR (OR DESIGNEE):

STREET OR RIGHT-OF-WAY CLOSURE REQUEST:

CITY         EVENT SPONSOR

STATE HIGHWAYS REQUIRE ADDITIONAL PERMITTING FROM WYDOT

Signature of Applicant

DATE PAID: AMOUNT PAID:

APPROVED / DENIED ON:

City Clerk Signature

OTHER CONDITIONS SET FORTH BY CHIEF OF POLICE (OR DESIGNEE):

OTHER CONDITIONS SET FORTH BY PUBLIC WORKS DIRECTOR (OR DESIGNEE):

PLEASE EXPLAIN HOW YOU WILL NOTIFY NEIGHBORS WHO MAY BE IMPACTED BY THE REQUESTED CLOSURE (i.e. door hangers, letters, in-person request, etc.):

STREET BARRICADES:

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

PLEASE EXPLAIN BARRICADE TYPE PER TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN.

SPECIAL REQUESTS (i.e. bounce house, stakes, electricity, etc.)

LOCATION DESCRIPTION OF DESIRED CLOSURE:

CLOSURE IMPACT (i.e. total closure, partial closure, remain open to traffic) Attach event map and traffic control plan:

EVENT DESCRIPTION:

SECTION 1: PUBLIC AREA USE PERMITS

TYPES OF PERMITS:

PARK RESERVATION

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

STREET OR RIGHT-OF-WAY CLOSURE

18



FEE: CODE PROVISION:

$25.00

LOUDSPEAKER PERMIT:

     Permit only issued for times between 8:00 AM and 12:00 AM.

     Permit not to exceed four (4) months.

Signature of Applicant

DATE PAID:

APPROVED / DENIED ON:

Chief of Police Signature

OTHER CONDITIONS SET FORTH BY CHIEF OF POLICE (OR DESIGNEE):

SECTION 3: LOUDSPEAKER

FEE: CODE PROVISION:

$25.00

FIREWORKS PERMIT:

     Attach letter of recommendation from Riverton Volunteer Fire Department Fire Chief.

     Required attendance at public hearing.

*REQUIRES COUNCIL APPROVAL Signature of Applicant

DATE PAID:

APPROVED / DENIED BY COUNCIL ACTION ON:

City Clerk Signature

OTHER CONDITIONS SET FORTH BY RIVERTON CITY COUNCIL:

SECTION 4: FIREWORKS

FIREWORKS* RMC 8.04.010 Allows fireworks displays by permit with Council approval only.

PLEASE EXPLAIN THE NATURE OF EQUIPMENT, THE VOLUME OF AMPLIFICATION, AND THE PURPOSE OF THE SOUND:

SECTION 3: LOUDSPEAKER PERMIT

TYPES OF PERMITS:

LOUDSPEAKER RMC 8.16.010 Allows loundspeakers & amplifiers by permit between 8:00 AM and 12:00 AM

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

DATES APPROVED: TIMES APPROVED:

SECTION 4: FIREWORKS PERMIT

TYPES OF PERMITS:

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

PUBLIC HEARING DATE:

PERSON IN CHARGE OF FIREWORKS DISPLAY OR PYROTECHNIC OPERATIONS:

LIST TYPES AND CLASS OF FIREWORKS TO BE DISPLAYED:

EVENT DESCRIPTION (Attach site map):

FIREWORKS DISPLAY MUST FOLLOW PROVISIONS OF THE CURRENT INTERNATIONAL FIRE CODE (IFC) CHAPTER 56, SECTIONS 5608.1-5608.10 AND CHAPTER 4, SECTION 403; 
AND NFPA 1123 OR NFPA 1126.
APPLICANT IS REQUIRED TO ADVERTISE IN LOCAL NEWSPAPER OR MEDIA OUTLETS TO INFORM THE PUBLIC OF THE EVENT(S).

19



June 2, 2022

To Whom it May Concern:

On behalf of the Riverton Volunteer Fire Department I am endorsing the use of fireworks for a display to be held July 16,
2022. With the understanding that the firework display will be held at the Jaycee park, as it has been held there in the
past.

RFD will be on standby with wildland trucks and an engine company if anything should arise.

The final decision to launch or cancel will be made mutually between the ranking fire officer on scene and a licensed
pyrotechnician in the case of unfavorable conditions (for example wind or drought.)

If you have any questions please feel free to contact me directly at (307)840-0582 or by email
rfdfirefighter51@gmail.com

Thank you,

Bria� Hutchin�

Brian Hutchins
Fire Chief

20



4
10

21



22



23



24



CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
TO: His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Michael Miller – Director of Community Development 

THROUGH: Anthony Tolstedt – City Administrator 

DATE: June 7th, 2022 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE 22-005 – TITLE 17 ZONING DEFINITION ADDITION 

Recommendation:   The City Council adopt on First Reading Ordinance No. 22-005, Title 17 
Zoning Definition Addition  

Background:   This definition addition was brought forth from the Planning Commission when 
City Council requested the Planning Commission provide research and recommendations 
regarding R-4 Residential zoning.  

Discussion: Adding this definition in Riverton Municipal Code will allow developers to build 
open parking structures that follow engineering and building code within the City of Riverton. 

Changes to RMC 17.05.010 Definitions 

“Open parking garage” means a Type I or Type II construction open on two or more 
sides. Use is exclusively for parking or storage of vehicles. A side is considered open when the 
total area of the distributed openings are not less than 50% of the exterior projected area. An 
engineered or standard approved foundation design is required. It is required to meet or exceed 
wind and snow loading per local design criteria. 

Planning Commission approved Ordinance No. 22-005 Title 17 Zoning Definition Addition on 
May 5th, 2022 

Alternatives:     In considering Ordinance 22-005, the Planning Commission may explore the 
following alternative actions: 

1. Amend Riverton Municipal Code to add the definition for Open Parking Garage
2. Deny the request to change the Ordinance and continue to follow current practices

and codes
3. Approve the changes with amendments and/or stipulations

25



Budget Impact:  Adopting Ordinance No. 22-005 does not directly impact the current budget 

26



PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO. 22-005 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 “ZONING” TO REVISE CHAPTER 
17.08 “DEFINITIONS”, SECTION 17.08.010 “DEFINITIONS”, OF THE 
RIVERTON MUNICIPAL CODE, AND REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR 
PARTS OF ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT THEREWITH; AND PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF RIVERTON, FREMONT 
COUNTY, WYOMING: 
 
Section 1. 
 
Title 17, Chapter 17.08 is hereby amended to read as follows: 
 
Chapter 17.08 Definitions  
 
17.08.010 Definitions. 
 
  “Open parking garage” means a Type I or Type II construction open on two or more 
sides. Use is exclusively for parking or storage of vehicles. A side is considered open when the total area 
of the distributed openings are not less than 50% of the exterior projected area. An engineered or standard 
approved foundation design is required. It is required to meet or exceed wind and snow loading per local 
design criteria. 
 
 
Section 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to the extent 

of such conflict. 
 
Section 3.  This ordinance shall take effect from its adoption and publication as required by law and the 

ordinances of the City of Riverton. 
 
 
  

PASSED ON FIRST READING  
  
PASSED ON SECOND READING  
  
PASSED ON THIRD READING  

 
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this _______ day of _________________ 2022. 
 

     
 CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING 

 
 

By:___________________________  
           Richard P. Gard 
            Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director  
 
ATTESTATION 
 
I, Kristin S. Watson, Clerk of the City of Riverton, attest that Ordinance No. 22-005 was passed, 
adopted, and approved by the Governing Body of the City of Riverton on the _____ day of 
_______ , 2022.  I further certify that the above proclamation ran at least once in the Riverton 
Ranger, a newspaper of general circulation within Riverton, Wyoming, the effective date of 
publication, and therefore the effective date of enactment being ______________________. 
 

____________________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson  
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

27

http://qcode.us/codes/riverton/view.php?topic=2-2_44-2_44_010&frames=on


CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 
TO: His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Michael Miller – Director of Community Development 

THROUGH: Anthony Tolstedt – City Administrator 

DATE: June 7th, 2022 

SUBJECT: ORDINANCE 22-006 – R-4 RESIDENTIAL ZONING CHANGES 

Recommendation:   The City Council adopt on First Reading Ordinance No. 22-006, R-4 
Residential Zoning Changes 

Background:   City Council requested that the Planning Commission conduct research and 
provide insight into the R-4 Residential Zoning for the City. The Planning Commission formed 
an R-4 Committee that researched and provided options to change some R-4 zoning 
requirements. The proposal was presented in front of City Council on April 19th and the changes 
were received with positivity.  

Discussion: This ordinance is a change directly based on the R-4 Committees recommendations. 
Changes to the lot area and height and floor area are being recommended for change in the code 
to clearly define what is allowed on a lot zoned R-4. The changes recommended remove code 
that cascades into R-4 from R-1. 

Changes to RMC 17.40.020 Lot Area 

A. The lot area for a one-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square
feet; 

B. The lot area for a multiple-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000)
square feet plus four hundred fifty (450) square feet for each additional living unit greater than 
two; 

C. A. Not more than fifty (50) percent of the lot area may be covered by the main and
accessory buildings except for open parking garages; and 

D.  B. Off-street parking must be provided pursuant to the provisions set forth in Chapter
15.36, as amended. (Ord. 16-004 § 1, 2016; Ord. 07-011 § 1, 2007; prior code Appx. B § 28)

Changes to RMC 17.40.030 Height and floor area

A. The maximum height of any building located in a residential R-4 district must be not more
than fifty (50) feet.

28



    B.   The floor area of a one-family dwelling must be not less than eight hundred fifty (850) 
square feet on the first floor level above the ground. The total floor area requirement may be met 
by adding together the floor area of two or more levels, if: 
    1.   The basement level is not more than forty-two (42) inches below the ground level; and 
    2.   The first floor level above the ground has a floor area of not less than six hundred (600) 
square feet. 
    C.   The floor area of each living unit in a multiple-family dwelling with two living units must 
be a minimum of four hundred twenty-five (425) square feet with not less than four hundred 
twenty-five (425) square feet on any one level. 
    D.  B. The floor area of each living unit in a multiple-family dwelling with more than two 
living units must be a minimum of three hundred (300) square feet. (Ord. 16-004 § 1, 2016; Ord. 
07-011 § 1, 2007; prior code Appx. B § 29) 
 
  
Alternatives:  

1. Amend Riverton Municipal Code to reflect changes to the lot use and height and floor 
requirements in an R-4 zoned area 

2. Deny the request to change Riverton Municipal Code and keep the R-4 Zoning lot use 
and height and floor requirements as they are  

3. Approve the changes with amendments and/or stipulations 
 
Budget Impact:  Adopting Ordinance No. 22-006 does not directly impact the current budget 
 

29



Proposed Ordinance 07-011 Page 1 of 2 Enrolled Ordinance 07-011 

 
 
PROPOSED ORDINANCE NO 22-006 
 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 17 “ZONING”;  CHAPTER 17.40 “R-4 
RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT”; SECTION 17.40.020 “LOT AREA”; SECTION 
17.40.030 “HEIGHT AND FLOOR AREA” OF THE RIVERTON MUNICIPAL 
CODE, AND REPEALING ALL ORDINANCES OR PARTS OF ORDINANCES 
IN CONFLICT THEREWITH; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE CITY OF RIVERTON, 
FREMONT COUNTY, WYOMING: 
 
 
Section 1.  
 
Title 17. Chapter 17.40, Section 17.40.020, Section 17.40.030 is hereby amended to include the 
following: 
 
 Section 17.40.020 Lot area. 
    In a residential R-4 district: 
    A.  The lot area for a one-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square 
feet; 
    B.   The lot area for a multiple-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) 
square feet plus four hundred fifty (450) square feet for each additional living unit greater than 
two; 
    C.  A. Not more than fifty (50) percent of the lot area may be covered by the main and 
accessory buildings except for open parking garages; and 
    D.  B. Off-street parking must be provided pursuant to the provisions set forth in Chapter 
15.36, as amended. (Ord. 16-004 § 1, 2016; Ord. 07-011 § 1, 2007; prior code Appx. B § 28) 
  
Section 17.40.030 Height and floor area. 
    A.  The maximum height of any building located in a residential R-4 district must be not more 
than fifty (50) feet. 
    B.   The floor area of a one-family dwelling must be not less than eight hundred fifty (850) 
square feet on the first floor level above the ground. The total floor area requirement may be met 
by adding together the floor area of two or more levels, if: 
    1.   The basement level is not more than forty-two (42) inches below the ground level; and 
    2.   The first floor level above the ground has a floor area of not less than six hundred (600) 
square feet. 
    C.   The floor area of each living unit in a multiple-family dwelling with two living units must 
be a minimum of four hundred twenty-five (425) square feet with not less than four hundred 
twenty-five (425) square feet on any one level. 
    D.  B. The floor area of each living unit in a multiple-family dwelling with more than two 
living units must be a minimum of three hundred (300) square feet. (Ord. 16-004 § 1, 2016; Ord. 
07-011 § 1, 2007; prior code Appx. B § 29) 
  
Section 2. All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed to 
the extent of such conflict. 

 
Section 3. This ordinance shall take effect from and after its passage, approval, and publication 

as required by law and ordinances of the City of Riverton. 
 
 

PASSED ON FIRST READING  
  

30



Proposed Ordinance 07-011 Page 2 of 2 Enrolled Ordinance 07-011 

PASSED ON SECOND READING  
  
PASSED ON THIRD READING  

 
PASSED, ADOPTED AND APPROVED this _______ day of _________________ 2022. 
 

     
 CITY OF RIVERTON, WYOMING 

 
 

By:___________________________  
           Richard P. Gard 
            Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
______________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson 
City Clerk/Human Resource Director  
 
ATTESTATION 
 
I, Kristin S. Watson, Clerk of the City of Riverton, attest that Ordinance No. 22-006 was passed, 
adopted, and approved by the Governing Body of the City of Riverton on the _____ day of _______ , 
2022.  I further certify that the above proclamation ran at least once in the Riverton Ranger, a 
newspaper of general circulation within Riverton, Wyoming, the effective date of publication, and 
therefore the effective date of enactment being ______________________. 
 

____________________________________ 
Kristin S. Watson  
City Clerk/Human Resource Director 

 
 
 
 

31



 CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT 

TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Kyle J. Butterfield, Public Works Director 

THROUGH: Anthony Tolstedt, City Administrator 

DATE: June 7, 2022 

SUBJECT: Transfer of M&J Leisure, LLC Lease Agreements 

Recommendation:  The City Council approves the transfer or assignment of rights, privileges, 
uses, or interest in the ground lease agreements between the City of Riverton and M&J Leisure, 
LLC to Henderson Strategic Fund, LLC. 

Background:  M&J Leisure, LLC holds two ground leases at Central Wyoming Regional 
Airport.  The first is a hangar supporting Classic Air Medical and the second supports fuel tanks 
privately operated by Classic Air Medical.  Chad Henderson of Allegiance Leasing and M&H 
Leisure, LLC recently informed the city that the leasehold improvements associated with the 
above referenced leases were transferred to the Henderson Strategic Fund, LLC, which is owned 
and operated by Tony Henderson, his brother.   

Discussion:  In light of the aforementioned transfer of leasehold improvements, the city must 
now consider a transfer of associated ground leases from M&J Leisure, LLC to Henderson 
Strategic Fund, LLC.  Each of the existing agreements allow for the lessee to transfer or assign 
leasehold improvements and lease interests to another party.  However, the lessee is first 
required to receive consent from the city in order to do so. 

Budget Impact:  There is no budget impact on this action since it represents a transfer of 
existing leases and will not change revenues associated with them. 

32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45


	01 06-07-22 Regular Council Meeting agenda
	1) Call to order.
	2) Pledge of Allegiance.
	3) Invocation.
	4) Roll call: Ward I: Kyle Larson, Dean Peranteaux
	Ward II: Karla Borders, Kristy K. Salisbury
	Ward III: Mike Bailey, Lindsey Cox

	8a 05-17-2022 Regular Council Meeting Minutes kw
	8c 05-24-22 Work Session Minutes
	8f CountyReplat_MountainViewLot2
	Memo -County Replat Mountain View Sub. Lot 2
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council


	2022-05-19 Packet
	2022-05-19 Packet
	2022-05-19 Packet
	City_Riverton_Minor_Sub_application
	Sheets and Views
	Minor_Sub_application-Page 1


	City_Riverton_Minor_Sub_application
	Sheets and Views
	Minor_Sub_application-Page 2


	deed-2022_1437040
	2022_5.17_Out of City Water Service Agreement - Menzies
	Chimney Rock & Mountain View
	GoogleEarth_Image
	122104-2022-04-04_Local-Re-Sub Plat with utilities
	Sheets and Views
	Re-Sub Plat with utilities


	122104-2022-04-04_Local-Re-Sub Plat
	Sheets and Views
	Re-Sub Plat






	9a Firework Application for Riverton Rendezvous Balloon Rally
	Pages from Event Application_2022 Riverton Rendezvous Balloon Rally.pdf
	Fireworks letter.pdf
	Pages from 07-06-21 Regular Council Meeting Packet-2.pdf

	9b Firework Application for Riverton Little League
	10a 22.005 Zoning Definition
	Memo -Title 17 Zoning Definition
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council


	22-005 Amending Title 17 Zoning Definition
	Section 1.


	11 22.006 R4 Zoning Change
	Memo -R-4 Residential Zoninh
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:  His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council
	A.  The lot area for a one-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square feet;
	B.   The lot area for a multiple-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square feet plus four hundred fifty (450) square feet for each additional living unit greater than two;
	C.  A. Not more than fifty (50) percent of the lot area may be covered by the main and accessory buildings except for open parking garages; and
	D.  B. Off-street parking must be provided pursuant to the provisions set forth in Chapter 15.36, as amended. (Ord. 16-004 § 1, 2016; Ord. 07-011 § 1, 2007; prior code Appx. B § 28)



	22-006 Proposed Ord R4 Residential Zone revisions
	Title 17. Chapter 17.40, Section 17.40.020, Section 17.40.030 is hereby amended to include the following:
	In a residential R-4 district:
	A.  The lot area for a one-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square feet;
	B.   The lot area for a multiple-family dwelling must be a minimum of four thousand (4,000) square feet plus four hundred fifty (450) square feet for each additional living unit greater than two;
	C.  A. Not more than fifty (50) percent of the lot area may be covered by the main and accessory buildings except for open parking garages; and
	D.  B. Off-street parking must be provided pursuant to the provisions set forth in Chapter 15.36, as amended. (Ord. 16-004 § 1, 2016; Ord. 07-011 § 1, 2007; prior code Appx. B § 28)



	12a 2022_6.7_M&J Leisure Lease Transfer
	CITY COUNCIL STAFF REPORT
	TO:   His Honor the Mayor and Members of the City Council



	NAME OF APPLICANTRESPONSIBLE PARTY: Megan Sims
	ORGANIZATION IF APPLICABLE: Riverton Rendezvous Committee
	ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP: 816 N Federal Blvd. Riverton, WY 82501
	CONTACT PHONE NUMBER: 307-857-7707
	CONTACT EMAIL ADDRESS: msims@rivertonwy.gov
	NAME  PURPOSE OF EVENT: Live Music & Firework Show @ Hot Air Balloon Glow
	LOCATION OF EVENT: CWC Soccer Fields & Jaycee Park
	DATES OF EVENT: July 16, 2022
	undefined: On
	undefined_2: Off
	undefined_3: On
	undefined_4: Off
	undefined_5: Off
	undefined_6: On
	undefined_7: On
	undefined_8: Off
	PARK RESERVATION: On
	STREET OR RIGHTOFWAY CLOSURE: Off
	OPEN CONTAINER: Off
	CATERING: Off
	MALT BEVERAGE: Off
	MANUFACTURERS OFFPREMISE: Off
	LOUDSPEAKER: On
	FIREWORKS: On
	FOR OFFICE USE ONLYRow1: Fees waived. 
	TOTAL PAYMENT: $0.00
	FROM TIME: 6:30
	TO TIME: 10:30
	Dropdown16: [PM]
	Dropdown17: [PM]
	PARK RESERVATION_2: On
	STREET OR RIGHTOFWAY CLOSURE_2: Off
	This only reserves the shelter area and does not guarantee cleanliness of facilites or use of restrooms  please plan accordingly: Park to be closed all day on Saturday, July 16, 2022. 
	DATE PAID: 
	AMOUNT PAID: 
	SIGN: Off
	WEBSITE: Off
	APPROVED  DENIED ON: 
	undefined_9: 
	undefined_10: 
	LOCATION DESCRIPTION OF DESIRED CLOSURE: 
	EVENT DESCRIPTION: 
	EVENT DESCRIPTION_2: 
	undefined_11: Off
	undefined_12: Off
	PLEASE EXPLAIN BARRICADE TYPE PER TRAFFIC CONTROL PLAN: 
	STATE HIGHWAYS REQUIRE ADDITIONAL PERMITTING FROM WYDOT: 
	DATE PAID_2: 
	AMOUNT PAID_2: 
	APPROVED  DENIED ON_2: 
	undefined_13: 
	undefined_14: 
	POLICE: 
	PW: 
	PARKS: 
	LOUDSPEAKER_2: On
	Permit only issued for times between 800 AM and 1200 AM: Band (live music) w/ Barcode 307. 
	DATE PAID_7: 
	DATES APPROVED: 
	APPROVED  DENIED ON_6: 
	undefined_25: 
	undefined_26: 
	FIREWORKS_2: On
	LIST TYPES AND CLASS OF FIREWORKS TO BE DISPLAYED: Dustin McLaughlin w/ Flying Phoenix Fireworks.
	LIST TYPES AND CLASS OF FIREWORKS TO BE DISPLAYED_2: 
	EVENT DESCRIPTION Attach site map: Please see attached. 
	DATE PAID_8: 
	PUBLIC HEARING DATE_2: 
	APPROVED  DENIED BY COUNCIL ACTION ON_2: 
	undefined_27: 
	undefined_28: 
	POLICE - LOUDSPEAKER: 
	COUNCIL - FIREWORKS: 


